BEFORE THE WASHINGTON STATE 

UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

	In the Matter of the Petition for Arbitration of an Amendment to Interconnection Agreements of

VERIZON NORTHWEST INC.

with 

COMPETITIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS AND COMMERCIAL MOBILE RADIO SERVICE PROVIDERS IN WASHINGTON 

Pursuant to 47 U.S.C. Section 252(b), and the Triennial Review Order.

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
	)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)
	DOCKET NO. UT-043013
REPLY OF SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY L.P. TO VERIZON’S OPPOSITION 



REPLY OF SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY L.P.
William E. Hendricks III

Sprint Corporation

902 Wasco Street

Hood River, OR 97031

(541) 387-9439 phone


(541) 387-9753 fax

tre.e.hendricks.iii@mail.sprint.com
Attorney for Sprint Communications Company L.P.
April 13, 2004
I.
Introduction
Sprint Communications Company, L.P. (“Sprint”) submits this Reply to Verizon Northwest Inc.’s (“Verizon”) Opposition to Sprint’s Motion to Dismiss (“Opposition”) pursuant to the Commission’s Procedural Order No. 2, in this docket.  In this case, Verizon made no attempts to negotiate the disputed issues with Sprint until just days before it filed its Petition for Arbitration.
  Moreover, this attempt came nearly four months after Sprint made a counter-proposal and only five days before Sprint filed its Motion to Dismiss.  These facts are undisputed.

Verizon’s notion of what constitutes good faith negotiations, as set forth in its Opposition, would allow an ILEC to use its superior bargaining position and resources to force CLECs into arbitration time and again.  This result is inconsistent with the requirement to negotiate in good faith set forth in the Act, the FCC’s Local Competition Order, and the Triennial Review Order (“TRO”).
II.
The Appropriate Standard to Determine whether Verizon Failed to Negotiate in Good Faith is Set for the in the TRO
The appropriate standards for the conduct of good faith negotiation under the Act are clearly set forth in the TRO.  Confirming that the duty to negotiate in good faith applies to changes in law resulting from the TRO, the FCC stated that “a party’s refusal to negotiate (or actions that would otherwise delay unnecessarily the resolution of) any single issue may be deemed a violation of section 251(c)(1).”
  Verizon’s failure to negotiate, much less to do so in good faith, constitutes a violation of its duty.
There is therefore no need to rely in this instance on labor law principles to reach the conclusion that Verizon violated its duty.  And regardless, Verizon mischaracterizes the FCC’s reliance on labor law in the Local Competition Order.
  As Verizon notes in its Opposition, the FCC did reference labor law precedent in the Local Competition Order.  However, the FCC did not do so to say that a party need not “agree to a proposal or make concessions” in negotiations, as Verizon suggests.
  Rather, the FCC cites National Labor Relations Board v. Truitt Mfg Co., 351 U.S. 149, 153 (1956) to support its conclusion that parties should be required to provide information necessary to reach agreement.

III.
Verizon’s Failure to Negotiate Constitutes a Violation of its Duty to Negotiate in Good Faith
Verizon’s argument that it can remain virtually silent as to the substance of the matters to be negotiated, send a response to Sprint’s offer after four months, and say that it has satisfied its statutory duty to negotiate make meaningless the word “negotiate.”  Negotiation is the “process of submission and consideration of offers until acceptable offer is made and accepted.”
  Verizon did not provide any substantive reply to Sprint’s October counter-proposal until it was too late, nor did it give Sprint any indication, prior to March 11, 2004, that it ever considered Sprint’s counter-proposal.  Therefore, Verizon failed to negotiate, much less in good faith, which resulted in an unreasonable delay in negotiations, contrary to the Act and the TRO.
Verizon argues in its Opposition that “Sprint should have concluded that, because Verizon did not agree to Sprint’s revisions, they were rejected.”
   That argument is flawed.  Sprint could have just as easily concluded that Verizon had not devoted sufficient resources to the task of negotiating, and therefore had merely failed to respond.  Sprint could have likewise concluded that Verizon was purposefully trying to stall negotiations with Sprint, in order to force multiple simultaneous arbitration proceedings where it could seek to impose its terms on every CLEC, in every state, all at one time.  That Verizon had rejected Sprint’s October counter-proposal is not the only conclusion that could be drawn from Verizon’s silence and lack of diligence.
In addition, principles of contract formation provide that “a mere inquiry as to whether one proposing a contract will alter or modify its terms, made before acceptance or rejection, does not amount to a rejection; and if the offer is not withdrawn, it may be accepted within a reasonable time.”
  Verizon, until very recently, did not even inquire as to whether Sprint would alter or modify its October counter-proposal.  Therefore, Verizon’s silence regarding Sprint’s counter-proposal is not a rejection.  Without some statement by Verizon that it had rejected Sprint’s offer, Sprint had no way to know why Verizon was not negotiating the disputed issues.
Furthermore, GTE, Verizon’s predecessor, has succeeded in other jurisdictions in advancing the same argument that Sprint makes in this case; that a failure to negotiate constitutes a failure to negotiate in good faith.  In an Ohio arbitration filed by Brooks Fiber Communications of Ohio, Inc. (“Brooks”), GTE moved the commission to dismiss Brook’s petition on the grounds that Brooks “failed to negotiate in good faith . . .  GTE states that Brooks waited over three months from the date that it received GTE's initial proposal for an interconnection agreement before taking any action.”

Finding that Brooks failed to negotiate in good faith, the Ohio commission rejected the same argument Verizon makes in this proceeding; that “good faith negotiation is not measured by the number or length of discussions” and that the parties had effectively reached impasse.
  The Ohio commission granted GTE’s motion to dismiss, finding that Brooks “requested interconnection and has merely waited until the last moment to file a petition for arbitration.”
 

Much like in the Ohio GTE Arbitration, Verizon in this case did not attempt meaningful negotiations with Sprint until the very last minute, nearly four months after Sprint made its interconnection proposal, and only five days before Sprint filed its Motion to Dismiss.  Thus, Verizon’s attempt to discredit the Affidavit of John Weyforth on the grounds that it submitted a late response to Sprint’s October counter-proposal is unavailing.
  Verizon’s failure in this case constitutes a violation of the duty to negotiate in good faith and therefore the Commission should dismiss Verizon’s Petition and order Verizon to now conduct negotiations with Sprint in good faith.

IV.
Conclusion
According to Verizon’s own Petition, Sprint responded to Verizon’s October 2, 2003 proposed amendments, but the “point-by-point response” from Verizon was not provided until March 11, 2004 – well after Verizon filed the Petition for Arbitration on February 26, 2004, and only five days before Sprint filed its Motion to Dismiss on March 16, 2004.  Simply put, that “point-by-point response” was a long overdue response to Sprint’s October 29, 2003 proposed language and was submitted after Verizon filed the Petition for Arbitration; after Verizon knew that it had to defend against arguments that it prematurely sought arbitration.
Verizon never adequately justifies why the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission and Sprint (as well as the other parties joined in this omnibus arbitration request) must expend time and resources to litigate positions that might have been, and should be, resolved via the negotiation process envisioned by Congress in the Act.  Sprint therefore respectfully requests that the Commission dismiss Verizon’s Petition for Arbitration as premature, or in the alternative dismiss Sprint from the petition, and order Verizon to negotiate in good faith.
Respectfully submitted this 13th day of April 2004.
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� See Attachment 1, March 11, 2004 Verizon Response.


� TRO, at ¶ 706.


� First Report and Order, Implementation of the Local Competition Provisions in the Telecommunications Act of 1996, 11 FCC Rcd 15499 (1996)(“Local Competition Order”).


� Opposition, at p. 3.


� Local Competition Order, at ¶ 155, footnote 292.


� Black’s Law Dictionary, Sixth Edition.


� Opposition, at p. 3.


� 17A Am Jur 2d CONTRACTS § 91.


� In the Matter of the Petition of Brooks Fiber Communications of Ohio, Inc. for Arbitration of Interconnection Rates, Terms, and Conditions and Related Arrangements with GTE North Inc., 1998 Ohio PUC LEXIS 487, Case No. 98-528-TP-ARB, Ohio Public Utility Commission, at ¶ 4 (October 5, 1998)(“Ohio GTE Arbitration”).


� Id., at ¶ 6.


� Id., at ¶ 11.


� Opposition, at p. 4.  Verizon also attempts to discredit Mr. Weyforth’s affidavit, asserting that it inaccurately states that Sprint did not receive a response from Verizon.  However, this statement is not supported by affidavit, or any other facts proffered by Verizon, and therefore should be disregarded by the Commission.
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